The CITY OF DAYTONA BEACH
Planning Board Minutes

City Hall 301 South Ridgewood Avenue
Commission Chambers Thursday, April 26, 2018
Regular Meeting 6:00 PM

Pursuant to Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, if any person decides to appeal any decision made by this
Board at this public meeting, such person will need a record of the proceedings and, for that purpose, such
person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. The City does not prepare or provide such a
record.

Help for the hearing impaired is
available through the Assistive
Listening System. Receivers can be
obtained from the City Clerk's Office.

For special accommodations,
please notify the City Clerk's
Office at least 72 hours in
advance. (386) 671-8020

Board Members Present:
Cathy Washington, Chair

James Neal, Vice Chair

Tony Barhoo

James Newman

Tony Servance

Board Members Absent:
Jeff Hurt

Staff Members Present:

Richard Walton, Planning Director
Bob Jagger, City Attorney

Dennis Mrozek, Planning Manager
Doug Gutierrez, Senior Planner
Hannah Ward, Planner

Reed Berger, Redevelopment Director
Becky Groom, Board Secretary

Call to Order

Ms. Washington called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.



Roll Call

The roll was called and members were noted present as stated above.

Approval of the Minutes - March 22, 2018

Board Action:

A motion was made by Mr. Neal, seconded by Mr. Barhoo, to approve the minutes of the March 22,
2018 meeting, as presented. The motion carried (5-0).

New Items:

Land Development Code Text Amendment - Article 4, DEV2018-048
(QuasiJudicial Hearing)

Hannah Ward, Planner, stated staff is requesting that this item be continued to the May 24, 2018,
Planning Board Meeting.

Board Action:

A motion was made by Mr. Newman, seconded by Mr. Barhoo, to continue Land Development Code
Text Amendment, Article 4, DEV2018-048 to the May 24, 2018 Planning Board Meeting as requested
by staff. The motion carried (5-0).

Rezoning to Planned Development-General (PD-G) - Mason
Williamson Storage, DEV2018-009 (Quasi-Judicial Hearing)

Staff Presentation:

Hannah Ward, Planner, presented the staff report which is included as part of the packet. Ms. Ward
stated this is a request to rezone a parcel of property that is currently vacant and undeveloped. Ms. Ward
stated waivers are requested regarding landscaping, signage, and architecture which are outlined in the
staff report.

Applicant Presentation:

Parker Mynchenberg, 1724 Ridgewood Avenue, stated the building is designed to have the appearance
of an office building. Mr. Mynchenberg stated a neighborhood meeting was held, and Commissioner
Ruth Trager attended the meeting. Mr. Mynchenberg stated everyone seemed supportive of the proposed
project. Mr. Mynchenberg stated this project will have joint stormwater retention at the large lake at the
City's Police Station on Valor Blvd.

Public Comments:
There were no public comments.



Board Action:

A motion was made by Mr. Barhoo, seconded by Mr. Newman, to approve Rezoning to Planned
Development-General (PD-G) - Mason Williamson Storage, DEV2018-009, in accordance with the staff
report as presented. The motion carried (5-0).

Site Plan - ERAU Student Housing, DEV2018-013, (Quasi-Judicial
Hearing)

Staff Presentation:

Dennis Mrozek, Planning Manager, presented the staff report which is included as part of the packet. Mr.
Mrozek stated this request is to construct a five story dormitory which is the second phase of the already
approved site plan.

Applicant Presentation:

Parker Mynchenberg, 1729 Ridgewood Avenue, stated this project, as well as all projects constructed at
Embry Riddle University campus, must go through an FAA approval process since the project is
adjacent to the Daytona Beach International Airport.

Public Comments:

There were no public comments.

Board Action:

A motion was made by, Mr. Barhoo, seconded by Mr. Neal, to approve Site Plan - ERAU Student
Housing, DEV2018-013, in accordance with the staff report as presented. The motion carried (5-0).

Right-of-Wav Vacation - Coates Street. DEV2018-020 (Public
Hearing)

Staff Presentation:

Reed Berger, Redevelopment Director, presented the staff report which is included as part of the packet.
Mr. Berger stated the applicant owns all of the property adjacent to Coates except for a small lot which is
owned by the City of Daytona Beach. Mr. Berger stated the existing vacant Shell's building and other
buildings will be demolished and the vacant property will be cleared to provide parking for the
Streamline Hotel.

Mr. Newman asked what the surface will be of the cleared property.

Mr. Berger stated the asphalt will remain in place and the road is closed and barricaded.

Applicant Presentation:

Ed Hennessy, 140 S. Atlantic Avenue, Daytona Beach, Florida, stated he is trying to assemble properties
in order to clean up the area and development will be determined later. Mr. Hennessy stated the surface
will be determined based on Code requirements.



Mr. Newman stated he is concerned about having a great vast of expansive asphalt that will create a lot
of heat.

Mr. Hennessy stated that will be determined by his engineer and architect and what the city will approve.
Mr. Servance stated the area will be a lot to leave vacant and asked what the time table is.
Mr. Barhoo stated he is concerned the area will become an eyesore while it is vacant.

Mr. Hennessy stated he has worked to clean up the area and the area is greatly improved from what it
was four years ago.

Public Comments:

Jake Jacobs, 116 S. Coates Avenue, stated he owns a multi-family apartment near this site and the
improvements to the Streamline have improved the area and stated it will be good to see an improvement
in this section of the city.

Jim Cameron, Senior Vice President of Governmental Relations, The Daytona Beach Chamber, stated
this area needs attention and feels this improvement will be a positive step.

Board Action:

A motion was made by Mr. Neal, seconded by Mr. Servance, to approve Right-of Way Vacation -
Coates Street, DEV2018-020, in accordance with the staff report as presented. The motion carried (5-0).

Small Scale Comprehensive Plan Amendment (SSCPA) - Marriott
Renaissance. DEV2017-117 (Legislative Hearing)

Discussion on this item included both Items 8 and 9.

Staff Presentation:

Doug Gutierrez, Senior Planner, presented the staff report which is included as part of the packet. Mr.
Gutierrez stated the request is to construct a parking garage on a site which is currently used as a parking
lot. Mr. Gutierrez stated the application includes a request to increase the maximum building height to
76 feet.

Applicant Presentation:

Rob Merrell, Cobb & Cole, 149 S. Ridgewood Avenue, Daytona Beach, Florida, spoke representing the
applicant. Mr. Merrell thanked the representatives of the Chamber ofCommerce for attending this
meeting regarding this item.

Samir Naran, 445 Idlewood Drive, Ormond Beach, Florida, spoke and stated he is the COO of Premier
Resorts & Management, which is the developer of this project. Mr. Naran stated his firm has developed
four other hotels in Volusia County and briefly outlined his involvement in the community. Mr. Naran
stated what is proposed is a 192 unit four-star hotel.



Mr. Merrell stated several neighborhood meetings were held; and what is proposed is a result of
compromise as a result of those meetings. Mr. Merrell stated the Seabreeze Neighborhood Watch group
met and voted 21-6 in favor of this project.

Additional hand-outs were distributed by Mr. Merrell for this presentation.

Bob Neal, Cooper-Carey Architects, 191 Peachtree Street, Suite 240, Atlanta, GA stated he specializes in
the design of hotels. Mr. Neal stated the proposed project will include a guest room tower, a low-rise
area for conference space and food and beverages, and an outdoor amenity area. Mr. Neal stated the
project will provide the largest unobstructed view of the Atlantic Ocean in the Daytona Beach area. Mr.
Neal stated the outdoor area will provide for events, such as weddings and other social gatherings, and
noted the ocean-front area will permits cars on the beach area. Mr. Neal stated a restaurant design team
was hired in order to create the best restaurant in Daytona Beach which will provide a "restaurant
experience."

Brian Fredley, BPF Design, 207 Fairview Avenue, Daytona Beach, Florida stated his firm is providing
architectural services for the parking garage. Mr. Fredley stated the existing hotel uses the current vacant
lot where the parking garage is proposed for parking but there is not adequate space available. Mr.
Fredley stated the current lot provides no protection to the neighborhood adjacent to the site. Mr. Fredley
stated the proposed structure will provide a buffer to the historic neighborhood. Mr. Fredley stated the
current area between the sidewalk and the street is now used for parking; but he is proposing to
landscape that area to create a landscape buffer from Grandview. Mr. Fredley stated this will provide a
24-1/2 foot landscaped buffer area which will provide a park-like atmosphere. Mr. Fredley stated after
meeting with the Seabreeze Neighborhood members, a different structure was proposed which will blend
with the historic neighborhood. Mr. Fredley stated the proposed structure will be closed on the north and
west sides which face the neighborhood so there will be no light or noise coming from the garage and
that section of the structure will be blacked out at night. Mr. Fredley stated the structure will be open on
the south and east sides for access and ventilation. Mr. Fredley stated there will be a Renaissance Hotel
sign on the east side of the building.

Mark Dowst, Mark Dowst & Associates, 536 N. Halifax, Daytona Beach, Florida, discussed the
proposed parking garage. Mr. Dowst stated the existing wall along Grandview will be removed in order
to provide a landscape area up to the proposed parking garage structure. Mr. Dowst stated parking will
no longer be permitted in that area along Grandview. Mr. Dowst stated a concern was raised at a
neighborhood meeting regarding traffic flow and a traffic separator which incorporates a short wall, and
landscaping is proposed for the south end of the project. Mr. Dowst stated all ofthe landscaping for the
project will be maintained by the applicant. Mr. Dowst stated a Marriott requirement is that all parking
be valet so the building will not be open to the public.

Mr. Barhoo asked if there will be security at the parking lot.
Mr. Merrell stated the parking garage will be closed and only accessed by valet.
Ms. Washington asked what type of lighting will be on the outside of the west side of the building.

Mr. Dowst stated there will be street lights as well as pedestrian lighting which will be 12 feet to 14 feet
in height.

Public Comments:
The following individuals spoke in support of the project:



James Cameron, Senior Vice President of Government Relations, The Daytona Beach Chamber, 126 E.
Orange Avenue, Daytona Beach, Florida;

Jake Jacobs, 116 S. Crossing Coates, Daytona Beach, Florida;

Chris Connors, 231 Riverside Drive, Holly Hill, Florida;

Terri Hinks, 213 Silver Beach, Daytona Beach, Florida;

Frank Molnar, 2607 S. Peninsula, Daytona Beach, Florida;

David Russell, 213 Silver Beach, Daytona Beach, Florida;

Ashley Garrett, 231 Riverside Drive, Daytona Beach, Florida;

Bob Davis, 1808 Concept Court, Daytona Beach, Florida.

Anne Ruby, 137 Park Avenue, Daytona Beach, Florida, asked if the applicant is proposing to remove the
cars from the beach behind the hotel.

Mr. Merrell stated no.

Eleanor Hollingsworth, 718 N. Grandview, Daytona Beach, Florida, stated she would like to see
improvements made to the remainder of Grandview beyond the proposed parking garage.

Anita Gallantine, 830 N. Grandview, Daytona Beach, Florida, stated her home is 1-1/2 blocks away from
the proposed parking structure. Ms. Gallantine stated she is opposed to what is proposed since it is nearly
twice the height of what is permitted by the Code. Ms. Gallantine stated she does not feel the
neighborhood should bear the brunt of a parking structure for a hotel that is not located on the west side
of A1A. Ms. Gallantine stated she asked the applicant why the developer could not construct the parking
structure on property directly across from the hotel on land they also own, and she was told the gas
station/convenience store has a long-term lease and it would be too expensive to buy out.Ms. Gallantine
stated she asked the developer why the parking structure could not be moved closer to A1A, and she was
told the small commercial building on that site may not be available for purchase. Ms. Gallantine stated
the proposed location is the least expensive option for the developer. Ms. Gallantine stated there was a
spill-over ofthe construction from the Hard Rock Hotel project and stated there will be two major streets
that will be impacted by the construction from this project as well as the Lotus Hotel project. Ms.
Gallantine stated no one enforces the existing codes and the neighborhood lived with semi-tractor
trailers, tractors, and dump trucks for months. Ms. Gallantine asked that language be placed in the
development agreement that will instantly fine the developer when the rules are broken since the City
Code and Building Departments ignore them.

Elizabeth Aloise, 11 Kingbridge , Daytona Beach, Florida stated she likes the proposed parking garage
and asked if improvements can continue along Grandview to the end of the street.

Richard Bernhard, 730 N. Grandview, Daytona Beach, Florida stated he provided a letter to city staff
regarding his concerns which has been distributed to the Planning Board members.

Mr. Merrell stated prior to this project being presented to the City Commission, language will be
incorporated into the PD agreement to address the construction issues that were raised by Ms. Gallantine.
Mr. Merrell stated the developer asked the City for a license to maintain the area between the parking
garage and the street which will basically be an extension of the developer's property. Mr. Merrell stated
the landscaping request for the remainder of Grandview will be reviewed with the City staff prior to the
application being presented to the City Commission.

Mr. Newman asked about the size of the parking structure and asked if it needed to be that tall.



Mr. Merrell stated the proposed structure will bring the parking requirements to Code and stated the
Marriott requires that amount of parking.

Mr. Neal stated he is pleased to see the proposed project coming to Daytona Beach.

Ms. Washington stated she feels the project is great and feels the parking garage does not have the
appearance of a parking garage. Ms. Washington stated the building fits the neighborhood.

Mr. Newman stated he is delighted to see the existing hotel building renovated and looks forward to the
project being done. Mr. Newman stated the parking garage structure fits in with the neighborhood.

Board Action:

A motion was made by Mr. Barhoo, seconded by Mr. Servance, to approve Small Scale Comprehensive
Plan Amendment (SSCPA) - Marriott Renaissance, DEV2017-117, in accordance with the staff report as
presented. The motion carried (5-0).

Rezoning to Planned Development-General (PD-G) - Marriott
Renaissance, DEV2017-116 (Quasi-Judicial Hearing)

This item was included as part of the discussion with Item 8.

Staff Presentation:

Dennis Mrozek, Planning Manager, presented the staff report which is included as part of the packet. Mr.
Mrozek stated this is a request to rezone property in order to allow for renovation of the existing Ocean
Breeze Hotel and development of an associated 291 space parking structure. Mr. Mrozek stated the
applicant held a neighborhood meeting and has modified the plans for the parking garage based on
discussions held at that meeting.

Mr. Barhoo asked if a traffic study was completed.

Mr. Mrozek stated a traffic statement was provided that indicated the number of trips generated would be
equal to what is generated by the existing hotel.

Public Comments:
There were no public comments.

Board Action:

A motion was made by Mr. Newman, seconded by Mr. Barhoo, to approve Rezoning to Planned
Development-General (PD-G) - Marriott Renaissance, DEV2017-116, in accordance with the staff report
as presented. The motion carried (5-0).

Rezoning to Planned Development-General (PD-G) - Subaru of
Daytona, DEV2017-150 (Quasi-Judicial Hearing)



Staff Presentation:

Dennis Mrozek, Planning Manager, presented the staffreport which is included as part of the packet. Mr.
Mrozek stated the proposed project will be located on the west side of1-95 along Tomoka Farms Road.

Applicant Presentation:

Rob Merrell, Cobb & Cole, 149 S. Ridgewood, Daytona Beach, Florida, stated this is the appropriate
place for this project.

Public Comments:

There were no public comments.

Board Action:

A motion was made by Mr. Barhoo, seconded by Mr. Newman, to approve Rezoning to Planned
Development-General (PD-G) - Subaru of Daytona, DEV2017-150, in accordance with the staff report
as presented. The motion carried (5-0).

Other Business:

1. Downtown/Ballough Road Redevelopment Area Board Report

Ms. Washington stated the Downtown/Ballough Road Redevelopment Area Board did not meet
in April.

2. Midtown Redevelopment Area Board Report

Mr. Barhoo stated the Midtown Redevelopment Area Board did not meet in April.
3. Beachside Redevelopment Area Board Report

Mr. Newman stated the Beachside Redevelopment Area Board did not meet in April.
4. Public Comments

The following representatives of the Florida Tennis Academy were in attendance and stated the
coaches were informed today that their program could no longer use the tennis courts: Christine
Ensminger; Olga Winfrey; Evelyn Belitz; Cyba Ozzer; Mary Hare-Bennett; Edmund Bennett;
Hayden Ensminger; Alex Guzhua; Sami Ozzo; Melissa Perman; David Perman; Carlie Davis;
Richard Perman; Lorena Perman; Zane Ensminger; Sirikit Press; and John Winfrey.

Ms. Washington stated the Planning Board has nothing to do with City recreation programs and
asked the members to provide the Board Secretary with their names and addresses so they could
be contacted by the City Manager.

5. Staff Comments



Mr. Walton stated he just returned from the American Planning Association national conference
which was attended by 6,000 Planners and 300 from the State of Florida.

6. Board Member Comments

Mr. Barhoo stated when there is a two minute time limit for the public, that should be adhered to.

Mr. Barhoo thanked the Planning Board and Midtown Redevelopment Board for the
proclamation presented to him and his family in remembrance of his brother's passing.

Mr. Newman stated it was nice to see a project presented this evening that so many people

support. Mr. Newman stated he hopes the situation presented by the Tennis Team members can
be rectified.

Mr. Servance stated he encouraged the tennis group to stay strong and hopes the issue can be
resolved.

Ms. Washington stated the contact information from the tennis group will be provided to the City
Manager in the morning and she hopes the issue can be resolved.

Adjournment

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:23 p.m.

RN e

Z Zﬁa,,ﬁy%ﬂ@u%
/ 7
Cathy \Jashington, Chair Tony ngéx)[ce



	City logo 
	City logo 
	Agenda information 
	The CITY OF DAYTONA BEACH
	Planning Board Minutes
	Meeting information
	Additional meeting information
	City Hall
	Commission Chambers
	Regular Meeting
	301 South Ridgewood Avenue
	Thursday, April 26, 2018
	6:00 PM
	Pursuant to Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, if any person decides to appeal any decision made by this Board at this public meeting, such person will need a record of the proceedings and, for that purpose, such person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. The City does not prepare or provide such a record. 
	Universal
	Universal symbol of accessibility
	Special accommodation information
	Universal symbol for hearing impaired support
	Hearing-impaired support information
	/
	For special accommodations, please notify the City Clerk's Office at least 72 hours in advance. (386) 671-8020
	/
	Help for the hearing impaired is available through the Assistive Listening System. Receivers can be obtained from the City Clerk's Office.
	Special accommodation information
	Layout table for Agenda Body Information
	Board Members Present: 
	Cathy Washington, Chair 
	James Neal, Vice Chair 
	Tony Barhoo 
	James Newman 
	Tony Servance 

	Board Members Absent: 
	Jeff Hurt 

	Staff Members Present: 
	Richard Walton, Planning Director 
	Bob Jagger, City Attorney 
	Dennis Mrozek, Planning Manager 
	Doug Gutierrez, Senior Planner 
	Hannah Ward, Planner 
	Reed Berger, Redevelopment Director 
	Becky Groom, Board Secretary 

	Call to Order 
	Ms. Washington called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

	Roll Call 
	The roll was called and members were noted present as stated above. 

	Approval of the Minutes - March 22, 2018 
	Board Action: 
	A motion was made by Mr. Neal, seconded by Mr. Barhoo, to approve the minutes of the March 22, 2018 meeting, as presented. The motion carried (5-0). 

	New Items: 
	Land Development Code Text Amendment - Article 4, DEV2018-048 (QuasiJudicial Hearing)
	Hannah Ward, Planner, stated staff is requesting that this item be continued to the May 24, 2018, Planning Board Meeting. 

	Board Action: 
	A motion was made by Mr. Newman, seconded by Mr. Barhoo, to continue Land Development Code Text Amendment, Article 4, DEV2018-048 to the May 24, 2018 Planning Board Meeting as requested by staff. The motion carried (5-0). 

	Rezoning to Planned Development-General (PD-G) - Mason Williamson Storage, DEV2018-009 (Quasi-Judicial Hearing) 
	Staff Presentation: 
	Hannah Ward, Planner, presented the staff report which is included as part of the packet. Ms. Ward stated this is a request to rezone a parcel of property that is currently vacant and undeveloped. Ms. Ward stated waivers are requested regarding landscaping, signage, and architecture which are outlined in the staff report. 

	Applicant Presentation: 
	Parker Mynchenberg, 1724 Ridgewood Avenue, stated the building is designed to have the appearance of an office building. Mr. Mynchenberg stated a neighborhood meeting was held, and Commissioner Ruth Trager attended the meeting. Mr. Mynchenberg stated everyone seemed supportive of the proposed project. Mr. Mynchenberg stated this project will have joint stormwater retention at the large lake at the City's Police Station on Valor Blvd. 

	Public Comments: 
	There were no public comments. 

	Board Action: 
	A motion was made by Mr. Barhoo, seconded by Mr. Newman, to approve Rezoning to Planned Development-General (PD-G) - Mason Williamson Storage, DEV2018-009, in accordance with the staff report as presented. The motion carried (5-0). 

	Site Plan - ERAU Student Housing, DEV2018-013, (Quasi-Judicial Hearing) 
	Staff Presentation: 
	Dennis Mrozek, Planning Manager, presented the staff report which is included as part of the packet. Mr. Mrozek stated this request is to construct a five story dormitory which is the second phase of the already approved site plan. 

	Applicant Presentation: 
	Parker Mynchenberg, 1729 Ridgewood Avenue, stated this project, as well as all projects constructed at Embry Riddle University campus, must go through an FAA approval process since the project is adjacent to the Daytona Beach International Airport. 

	Public Comments: 
	There were no public comments. 

	Board Action: 
	A motion was made by, Mr. Barhoo, seconded by Mr. Neal, to approve Site Plan - ERAU Student Housing, DEV2018-013, in accordance with the staff report as presented. The motion carried (5-0). 

	Right-of-Wav Vacation - Coates Street. DEV2018-020 (Public Hearing) 
	Staff Presentation: 
	Reed Berger, Redevelopment Director, presented the staff report which is included as part of the packet. Mr. Berger stated the applicant owns all of the property adjacent to Coates except for a small lot which is owned by the City of Daytona Beach. Mr. Berger stated the existing vacant Shell's building and other buildings will be demolished and the vacant property will be cleared to provide parking for the Streamline Hotel. 
	Mr. Newman asked what the surface will be of the cleared property. 
	Mr. Berger stated the asphalt will remain in place and the road is closed and barricaded. 

	Applicant Presentation: 
	Ed Hennessy, 140 S. Atlantic Avenue, Daytona Beach, Florida, stated he is trying to assemble properties in order to clean up the area and development will be determined later. Mr. Hennessy stated the surface will be determined based on Code requirements. 
	Mr. Newman stated he is concerned about having a great vast of expansive asphalt that will create a lot of heat. 
	Mr. Hennessy stated that will be determined by his engineer and architect and what the city will approve. 
	Mr. Servance stated the area will be a lot to leave vacant and asked what the time table is. 
	Mr. Barhoo stated he is concerned the area will become an eyesore while it is vacant. 
	Mr. Hennessy stated he has worked to clean up the area and the area is greatly improved from what it was four years ago. 

	Public Comments: 
	Jake Jacobs, 116 S. Coates Avenue, stated he owns a multi-family apartment near this site and the improvements to the Streamline have improved the area and stated it will be good to see an improvement in this section of the city. 
	Jim Cameron, Senior Vice President of Governmental Relations, The Daytona Beach Chamber, stated this area needs attention and feels this improvement will be a positive step. 

	Board Action: 
	A motion was made by Mr. Neal, seconded by Mr. Servance, to approve Right-of Way Vacation - Coates Street, DEV2018-020, in accordance with the staff report as presented. The motion carried (5-0). 

	Small Scale Comprehensive Plan Amendment (SSCPA) - Marriott Renaissance. DEV2017-117 (Legislative Hearing) 
	Discussion on this item included both Items 8 and 9. 

	Staff Presentation: 
	Doug Gutierrez, Senior Planner, presented the staff report which is included as part of the packet. Mr. Gutierrez stated the request is to construct a parking garage on a site which is currently used as a parking lot. Mr. Gutierrez stated the application includes a request to increase the maximum building height to 76 feet.

	Applicant Presentation: 
	Rob Merrell, Cobb & Cole, 149 S. Ridgewood Avenue, Daytona Beach, Florida, spoke representing the applicant. Mr. Merrell thanked the representatives of the Chamber ofCommerce for attending this meeting regarding this item. 
	Samir Naran, 445 Idlewood Drive, Ormond Beach, Florida, spoke and stated he is the COO of Premier Resorts & Management, which is the developer of this project. Mr. Naran stated his firm has developed four other hotels in Volusia County and briefly outlined his involvement in the community. Mr. Naran stated what is proposed is a 192 unit four-star hotel. 
	Mr. Merrell stated several neighborhood meetings were held; and what is proposed is a result of compromise as a result of those meetings. Mr. Merrell stated the Seabreeze Neighborhood Watch group met and voted 21-6 in favor of this project. 
	Additional hand-outs were distributed by Mr. Merrell for this presentation. 
	Bob Neal, Cooper-Carey Architects, 191 Peachtree Street, Suite 240, Atlanta, GA stated he specializes in the design of hotels. Mr. Neal stated the proposed project will include a guest room tower, a low-rise area for conference space and food and beverages, and an outdoor amenity area. Mr. Neal stated the project will provide the largest unobstructed view of the Atlantic Ocean in the Daytona Beach area. Mr. Neal stated the outdoor area will provide for events, such as weddings and other social gatherings, and noted the ocean-front area will permits cars on the beach area. Mr. Neal stated a restaurant design team was hired in order to create the best restaurant in Daytona Beach which will provide a "restaurant experience." 
	Brian Fredley, BPF Design, 207 Fairview Avenue, Daytona Beach, Florida stated his firm is providing architectural services for the parking garage. Mr. Fredley stated the existing hotel uses the current vacant lot where the parking garage is proposed for parking but there is not adequate space available. Mr. Fredley stated the current lot provides no protection to the neighborhood adjacent to the site. Mr. Fredley stated the proposed structure will provide a buffer to the historic neighborhood. Mr. Fredley stated the current area between the sidewalk and the street is now used for parking; but he is proposing to landscape that area to create a landscape buffer from Grandview. Mr. Fredley stated this will provide a 24-1/2 foot landscaped buffer area which will provide a park-like atmosphere. Mr. Fredley stated after meeting with the Seabreeze Neighborhood members, a different structure was proposed which will blend with the historic neighborhood. Mr. Fredley stated the proposed structure will be closed on the north and west sides which face the neighborhood so there will be no light or noise coming from the garage and that section of the structure will be blacked out at night. Mr. Fredley stated the structure will be open on the south and east sides for access and ventilation. Mr. Fredley stated there will be a Renaissance Hotel sign on the east side of the building. 
	Mark Dowst, Mark Dowst & Associates, 536 N. Halifax, Daytona Beach, Florida, discussed the proposed parking garage. Mr. Dowst stated the existing wall along Grandview will be removed in order to provide a landscape area up to the proposed parking garage structure. Mr. Dowst stated parking will no longer be permitted in that area along Grandview. Mr. Dowst stated a concern was raised at a neighborhood meeting regarding traffic flow and a traffic separator which incorporates a short wall, and landscaping is proposed for the south end of the project. Mr. Dowst stated all ofthe landscaping for the project will be maintained by the applicant. Mr. Dowst stated a Marriott requirement is that all parking be valet so the building will not be open to the public. 
	Mr. Barhoo asked if there will be security at the parking lot. 
	Mr. Merrell stated the parking garage will be closed and only accessed by valet. 
	Ms. Washington asked what type of lighting will be on the outside of the west side of the building. 
	Mr. Dowst stated there will be street lights as well as pedestrian lighting which will be 12 feet to 14 feet in height. 

	Public Comments: 
	The following individuals spoke in support of the project: 
	James Cameron, Senior Vice President of Government Relations, The Daytona Beach Chamber, 126 E. Orange Avenue, Daytona Beach, Florida; 
	Jake Jacobs, 116 S. Crossing Coates, Daytona Beach, Florida; 
	Chris Connors, 231 Riverside Drive, Holly Hill, Florida; 
	Terri Hinks, 213 Silver Beach, Daytona Beach, Florida; 
	Frank Molnar, 2607 S. Peninsula, Daytona Beach, Florida; 
	David Russell, 213 Silver Beach, Daytona Beach, Florida; 
	Ashley Garrett, 231 Riverside Drive, Daytona Beach, Florida; 
	Bob Davis, 1808 Concept Court, Daytona Beach, Florida. 
	Anne Ruby, 137 Park Avenue, Daytona Beach, Florida, asked if the applicant is proposing to remove the cars from the beach behind the hotel. 
	Mr. Merrell stated no. 
	Eleanor Hollingsworth, 718 N. Grandview, Daytona Beach, Florida, stated she would like to see improvements made to the remainder of Grandview beyond the proposed parking garage. 
	Anita Gallantine, 830 N. Grandview, Daytona Beach, Florida, stated her home is 1-1/2 blocks away from the proposed parking structure. Ms. Gallantine stated she is opposed to what is proposed since it is nearly twice the height of what is permitted by the Code. Ms. Gallantine stated she does not feel the neighborhood should bear the brunt of a parking structure for a hotel that is not located on the west side of A1A. Ms. Gallantine stated she asked the applicant why the developer could not construct the parking structure on property directly across from the hotel on land they also own, and she was told the gas station/convenience store has a long-term lease and it would be too expensive to buy out.Ms. Gallantine stated she asked the developer why the parking structure could not be moved closer to A1A, and she was told the small commercial building on that site may not be available for purchase. Ms. Gallantine stated the proposed location is the least expensive option for the developer. Ms. Gallantine stated there was a spill-over ofthe construction from the Hard Rock Hotel project and stated there will be two major streets that will be impacted by the construction from this project as well as the Lotus Hotel project. Ms. Gallantine stated no one enforces the existing codes and the neighborhood lived with semi-tractor trailers, tractors, and dump trucks for months. Ms. Gallantine asked that language be placed in the development agreement that will instantly fine the developer when the rules are broken since the City Code and Building Departments ignore them. 
	Elizabeth Aloise, 11 Kingbridge , Daytona Beach, Florida stated she likes the proposed parking garage and asked if improvements can continue along Grandview to the end of the street. 
	Richard Bernhard, 730 N. Grandview, Daytona Beach, Florida stated he provided a letter to city staff regarding his concerns which has been distributed to the Planning Board members. 
	Mr. Merrell stated prior to this project being presented to the City Commission, language will be incorporated into the PD agreement to address the construction issues that were raised by Ms. Gallantine. Mr. Merrell stated the developer asked the City for a license to maintain the area between the parking garage and the street which will basically be an extension of the developer's property. Mr. Merrell stated the landscaping request for the remainder of Grandview will be reviewed with the City staff prior to the application being presented to the City Commission. 
	Mr. Newman asked about the size of the parking structure and asked if it needed to be that tall. 
	Mr. Merrell stated the proposed structure will bring the parking requirements to Code and stated the Marriott requires that amount of parking. 
	Mr. Neal stated he is pleased to see the proposed project coming to Daytona Beach. 
	Ms. Washington stated she feels the project is great and feels the parking garage does not have the appearance of a parking garage. Ms. Washington stated the building fits the neighborhood. 
	Mr. Newman stated he is delighted to see the existing hotel building renovated and looks forward to the project being done. Mr. Newman stated the parking garage structure fits in with the neighborhood. 

	Board Action: 
	A motion was made by Mr. Barhoo, seconded by Mr. Servance, to approve Small Scale Comprehensive Plan Amendment (SSCPA) - Marriott Renaissance, DEV2017-117, in accordance with the staff report as presented. The motion carried (5-0). 

	Rezoning to Planned Development-General (PD-G) - Marriott Renaissance, DEV2017-116 (Quasi-Judicial Hearing) 
	This item was included as part of the discussion with Item 8. 

	Staff Presentation: 
	Dennis Mrozek, Planning Manager, presented the staff report which is included as part of the packet. Mr. Mrozek stated this is a request to rezone property in order to allow for renovation of the existing Ocean Breeze Hotel and development of an associated 291 space parking structure. Mr. Mrozek stated the applicant held a neighborhood meeting and has modified the plans for the parking garage based on discussions held at that meeting. 
	Mr. Barhoo asked if a traffic study was completed. 
	Mr. Mrozek stated a traffic statement was provided that indicated the number of trips generated would be equal to what is generated by the existing hotel. 

	Public Comments: 
	There were no public comments. 

	Board Action: 
	A motion was made by Mr. Newman, seconded by Mr. Barhoo, to approve Rezoning to Planned Development-General (PD-G) - Marriott Renaissance, DEV2017-116, in accordance with the staff report as presented. The motion carried (5-0). 

	Rezoning to Planned Development-General (PD-G) - Subaru of Daytona, DEV2017-150 (Quasi-Judicial Hearing) 
	Staff Presentation: 
	Dennis Mrozek, Planning Manager, presented the staffreport which is included as part of the packet. Mr. Mrozek stated the proposed project will be located on the west side of1-95 along Tomoka Farms Road. 

	Applicant Presentation: 
	Rob Merrell, Cobb & Cole, 149 S. Ridgewood, Daytona Beach, Florida, stated this is the appropriate place for this project. 

	Public Comments: 
	There were no public comments. 

	Board Action:
	A motion was made by Mr. Barhoo, seconded by Mr. Newman, to approve Rezoning to Planned Development-General (PD-G) - Subaru of Daytona, DEV2017-150, in accordance with the staff report as presented. The motion carried (5-0). 

	Other Business: 

	1. Downtown/Ballough Road Redevelopment Area Board Report 
	Ms. Washington stated the Downtown/Ballough Road Redevelopment Area Board did not meet in April. 
	2. Midtown Redevelopment Area Board Report 
	Mr. Barhoo stated the Midtown Redevelopment Area Board did not meet in April. 
	3. Beachside Redevelopment Area Board Report 
	Mr. Newman stated the Beachside Redevelopment Area Board did not meet in April. 
	4. Public Comments 
	The following representatives of the Florida Tennis Academy were in attendance and stated the coaches were informed today that their program could no longer use the tennis courts: Christine Ensminger; Olga Winfrey; Evelyn Belitz; Cyba Ozzer; Mary Hare-Bennett; Edmund Bennett; Hayden Ensminger; Alex Guzhua; Sami Ozzo; Melissa Perman; David Perman; Carlie Davis; Richard Perman; Lorena Perman; Zane Ensminger; Sirikit Press; and John Winfrey. 
	Ms. Washington stated the Planning Board has nothing to do with City recreation programs and asked the members to provide the Board Secretary with their names and addresses so they could be contacted by the City Manager. 
	5. Staff Comments 
	Mr. Walton stated he just returned from the American Planning Association national conference which was attended by 6,000 Planners and 300 from the State of Florida. 
	6. Board Member Comments 
	Mr. Barhoo stated when there is a two minute time limit for the public, that should be adhered to. 
	Mr. Barhoo thanked the Planning Board and Midtown Redevelopment Board for the proclamation presented to him and his family in remembrance of his brother's passing.
	Mr. Newman stated it was nice to see a project presented this evening that so many people support. Mr. Newman stated he hopes the situation presented by the Tennis Team members can be rectified. 
	Mr. Servance stated he encouraged the tennis group to stay strong and hopes the issue can be resolved. 
	Ms. Washington stated the contact information from the tennis group will be provided to the City Manager in the morning and she hopes the issue can be resolved. 
	Adjournment 
	There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:23 p.m.






Accessibility Report





		Filename: 

		Minutes - April 26, 2018.pdf









		Report created by: 

		



		Organization: 

		







[Enter personal and organization information through the Preferences > Identity dialog.]



Summary



The checker found no problems in this document.





		Needs manual check: 1



		Passed manually: 1



		Failed manually: 0



		Skipped: 3



		Passed: 27



		Failed: 0







Detailed Report





		Document





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Accessibility permission flag		Passed		Accessibility permission flag must be set



		Image-only PDF		Passed		Document is not image-only PDF



		Tagged PDF		Passed		Document is tagged PDF



		Logical Reading Order		Passed manually		Document structure provides a logical reading order



		Primary language		Passed		Text language is specified



		Title		Passed		Document title is showing in title bar



		Bookmarks		Passed		Bookmarks are present in large documents



		Color contrast		Needs manual check		Document has appropriate color contrast



		Page Content





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Tagged content		Passed		All page content is tagged



		Tagged annotations		Skipped		All annotations are tagged



		Tab order		Passed		Tab order is consistent with structure order



		Character encoding		Passed		Reliable character encoding is provided



		Tagged multimedia		Passed		All multimedia objects are tagged



		Screen flicker		Passed		Page will not cause screen flicker



		Scripts		Passed		No inaccessible scripts



		Timed responses		Passed		Page does not require timed responses



		Navigation links		Passed		Navigation links are not repetitive



		Forms





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Tagged form fields		Passed		All form fields are tagged



		Field descriptions		Skipped		All form fields have description



		Alternate Text





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Figures alternate text		Passed		Figures require alternate text



		Nested alternate text		Passed		Alternate text that will never be read



		Associated with content		Passed		Alternate text must be associated with some content



		Hides annotation		Passed		Alternate text should not hide annotation



		Other elements alternate text		Passed		Other elements that require alternate text



		Tables





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Rows		Passed		TR must be a child of Table, THead, TBody, or TFoot



		TH and TD		Passed		TH and TD must be children of TR



		Headers		Passed		Tables should have headers



		Regularity		Passed		Tables must contain the same number of columns in each row and rows in each column



		Summary		Skipped		Tables must have a summary



		Lists





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		List items		Passed		LI must be a child of L



		Lbl and LBody		Passed		Lbl and LBody must be children of LI



		Headings





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Appropriate nesting		Passed		Appropriate nesting










Back to Top



